UIdaho Law Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

6-3-2014

| United States Constitution, Amendment SixthPASSI | [M |

| 1 | ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW |
|--------|---|
| 2 3 | Appeal the Sentence imposed? (By Counsel's |
| 4 5 | Appellant to plead guilty without challenging the |
| 6 | For purpose of brevity, the Appellant/Petitioner will consolidate |
| 7 | these issues together as much as possible. |
| 8 | STATEMENT OF THE CASE |
| 9 | The Petitioner/Appellant was sentenced to a term of incarceration |
| 10 | in the amount of 12 years: to wit, 5 years determinate followed by |
| 11 | 7 years indeterminate. |
| 12 | The Petitioner/Appellant asked Counsel to file an Appeal of |
| 14 | the sentence imposed. |
| 15 | The Petitioner/Appellant, after waiting for a great length of |
| 16 | time, and hearing nothing from any Court or Counsel as to the sought |
| 17 | after appeal, filed a Petition for Post Conviction Relief. |
| 18 | The District Court, filed not one, but two notices of intent |
| 19 | to dismiss, to which the Appellant/Petitioner responded. Eventually, |
| 20 | the District Court dismissed the Petition without ever appointing |
| 21 | Counsel to assist the Petitioner. |
| 22 | The Appellant/Petitioner asserts that Counsel should have |
| 23 | challenged the evidence against him before advising him to enter |
| 24 | into a plea of guilty; and, that Counsel had a duty to file an appeal |
| 25 | of the sentence imposed. |
| 26 | The Appellant/Petitioner also asserts that Counsel should have |
| 27 | been appointed in the Post Conviction matter, and for this appeal. |
| 28 | The Appellant/Petitioner waived, as part of the plea, the |
| | |

· ° 1

.

ability to appeal THE CONVICTION. not the sentence imposed. 1 Based upon this, and because there was no appeal filed as * 2 to the sentence imposed, Counsel was ineffective for not filing 3 an appeal of the sentence imposed. 4 This does not nullify the plea agreement. As stated, the 5 Petitioner waived his right to appeal the CONVICTION. 6 The Petitioner did not waive his right to file an appeal of 7 the SENTENCE IMPOSED. 8 9 FIRST ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 10 11 The Office of the State Attorney General has filed a 12 concession in the case of Ellis V. Smith, CV-06-00240-LMB as was filed in the United States District Court, in and for the 14 District of Idaho, whereas the State of Idaho has now conceded 15 that the cases of Martinez V. Ryan, 132 S.Ct. 1309, (2012); and 16 Trevino V. Thaler, 133 S.Ct. 1911, (2013) apply to the State of 17 Idaho. 18 Those cases, from the United States Supreme Court, clearly 19 and conclusively state that a substantial claim of ineffective 20 assistance of counsel, (That has been procedurally defaulted), 21 will be heard by the Court, if Counsel in the District Court 22 was ineffective, or no counsel was appointed in the District 23 Court. This is the exact claim before this Court, and the Court was 24

in error not to allow these claims to be heard. 25

Opening Brief of Appellant-2

13

1 The Petitioner did enter into a plea agreement as to the 2 five year fixed term. But he did not enter into a plea agreement 3 as to the 7 year indeterminate term, and therefore an Appeal of of the 7 year indeterminate term is permissible and should have 4 been undertaken by Counsel. 5 In the case of United States V. Garrett, 402 F.3d 1262, 6 7 (2005), the Court held, "An attorney's failure to file an appeal in spite of 8 having been instructed to do so is ineffective assistance of counsel even though the defendant may 9 have waived his right to appeal in the plea agreement". 10 This fits precisely into the facts of this case. It was 11 clearly ineffective assistance of Counsel for Counsel not to file 12 an appeal of the sentence imposed. 13 In the case of United States V. Sandoval-Lopez, 409 F.3d 14 1193, (2005), the Court held as follows: 15 "..an attorney's failure to file an appeal is 16 ineffective assistance where the attorney was informed to file such an appeal, but did not do so because 17 the plea agreement had specifically waived the right to file such an appeal". 18 Based upon these cases, and a plethora of others, it is 19 a substantial claim of ineffective assistance of counsel for 20 counsel not to have filed the requested appeal of the sentence 21 imposed. 22 SECOND ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 23 The Court has misrepresented, or misunderstood the second 24 issue concerning the failure to file a Motion to Suppress the 25 Opening Brief of Appellant-3

evidence in this case.

l

2

3

4

5

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

The Court has stated, in the Amended Notice of Intent to Dismiss, on page 2, at paragraph 3, this Court states:

> "...At the time the plea was taken Petitioner was informed that if he pled guilty he would give up any right to seek to suppress the evidence against him, and Petitioner acknowledged this...".

There is absolutely nothing in the context of the plea There is absolutely nothing in the context of the plea agreement that states that the Petitioner is waiving or giving up his right to collaterally attack his conviction based upon a claim or claims of Ineffective Assistance of Counsel.

10 It is not known if the Petitioner was given adequate legal 11 advise when he entered into the plea agreement. At the time the 12 plea was entered, the attorney of record informed the Petitioner 13 that he had no standing to challenge the admission of evidence 14 that was taken from his vehicle.

This turns out not to be the law of the United States of America under the Fourth Amendment.

There is an abundance of case authority that states that it is ineffective assistance of counsel for counsel not to have challenged the evidence against a criminal defendant prior to engaging in plea negotiations. Please see, <u>Moore V. Czerniak</u>, 534 F.3d 1128, (9th Cir. 2008),(Counsel's failure to file a Motion to Suppress was ineffective assistance, where Motion, if it had been filed, would have allowed the attorney to bargain for a lighter sentence); <u>Tomlin V. Myers</u>, 30 F. 3d 1235, (9th Cir. 1994),(Failure to challenge admission of evidence resulting from an illegal line-up was ineffective assistance of counsel).

Opening Brief of Appellant-4

The Court seems to think that if the Petitioner is successful in his Post-Conviction Petition, then the State would be free to re-charge the Petitioner, which would include the refiling of the persistent felony offender charge.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

20

21

22

23

24

25

The Court may be correct. But the problem with the Court's reasoning is this. If the Petitioner is successful, that would mean that he was granted an evidentiary hearing. To be successful at such a hearing, the Petitioner would have to be granted the ability to file a suppression Motion. If that Motion to suppress evidence was granted, there would be no evidence against the Petitioner for the State of Idaho to use to re-file these charges.

Out of 100 attorney's, the Petitioner cannot seem to find a single attorney who would not have filed a Motion to Suppress the evidence in this case. How then can the Court make any type of argument that the Petitioner was given the effective assistance of Counsel during the plea process, when the attorney of record did not file such a Motion?

How does the attorney of record advise the Petitioner into accepting a plea agreement when the attorney has not even tried to challenge the evidence against the Petitioner?

CONCLUSION

This case comes down to one simple basic question. One that the Court cannot dismiss as readily as it would seem. That question is: "...Is the Petitioner entitled to the effective Assistance of Counsel during the Plea Bargaining Process"?

The United States Supreme Court has already answered this

Opening Brief of Appellant-5

question. In the case of Lafler V. Cooper, 132 S.Ct. 1376, (2012) the Court stated as follows:

"... The fact that a defendant is guilty does not mean he is not entitled to the effective assistance of counsel during the plea bargain process".

Once more, the Courts have all agreed, it is deficient performance for an attorney to not file a Motion to Suppress. <u>Gentry V. Sevier</u>, 597 F.3d 838, (2010). (Ineffective assistance of Counsel for failing to file a Motion to Suppress, even though the evidence may have been discovered as a result of the inevitable discovery rule).

So, the question then becomes, "..was counsel in this case ineffective for advising the Petitioner to accept the plea agreement, when he had not challenged the evidence"? There is only one possible answer.

Next, as to the procedural default, this Court is bound by the terms of the cases as cited by the United States Supreme Court. Please see, <u>Martinez V. Ryan</u>, 132 S.Ct. 1309, (2012); and, <u>Trevino V. Thaler</u>, 133 S.Ct. 1911, (2013).

Each of these cases are clear. A State's procedural default rule will not stop a claim from being heard if there is a substantial claim of ineffective assistance of counsel.

The Petitioner submits that he has such a "substantial"

Furthermore, the time to file for Post Conviction Relief is "tolled" during the time that an appeal is taken. It was the failure of counsel to file such an appeal that resulted in the untimely filing of the instant Petition, and therefore this Court

Opening Brief of Appellant-6

24

25

1

2

3

1 should allow the claims of the Petitioner to be heard on their
2 merits.

³ Had counsel filed the requested appeal, the Petitioner would ⁴ have had a date certain as to when he had to file his Post ⁵ Conviction Petition. But, because counsel did not file such an ⁶ appeal, the Petitioner has been denied the ability to timely file ⁷ his Post Conviction Petition.

⁸ Based upon the facts of this case, the Petitioner should be
⁹ allowed the ability, (With the assistance of counsel), his claims
¹⁰ of ineffective assistance of counsel, and to develop his Motion to
¹¹ suppress the evidence against him.