Uldaho Law **Digital Commons** @ **Uldaho Law**

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

7-28-2014

Brown v. State Respondent's Brief Dckt. 41826

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature Of The Case

Lloyd James Brown appeals from the district court's order summarily dismissing his untimely petition for post-conviction relief.

Statement Of The Facts And Course Of The Proceedings

In July 2011, pursuant to his guilty plea, Brown was convicted of trafficking in heroin and was sentenced to 12 years with five years fixed. (R., pp.2-3, 27.) Brown did not file an appeal.¹ (R., p.3.) More than two years after the judgment became final in his case, Brown filed his petition for post-conviction relief on September 12, 2013. (R., p.2.) In the petition, Brown alleged that his guilty plea was neither knowing nor voluntary, and that his counsel was ineffective for failing to file a motion to suppress evidence and for failing to appeal. (R., pp.3-8.)

The district court issued its notice of intent to dismiss Brown's petition for post-conviction relief on the ground that it was untimely. (R., pp.25-28.) After Brown responded (R., pp.30-40), the district court issued an amended notice of intent to dismiss the untimely petition (R., pp.41-44). Two months later, the district court dismissed Brown's untimely petition for post-conviction relief. (R., pp.54-56.) Brown filed a timely notice of appeal. (R., pp.58-60.)

¹ Brown did, however, file a Rule 35 motion, which was denied. (R., p.27.)

<u>ISSUES</u>

Brown states the issues on appeal as:

- 1. Was the Petitioner/Appellant denied his right to Appeal the Sentence imposed? (By Counsel's Failure to file such Appeal).
- 2. Was counsel ineffective for advising the Petitioner/Appellant to plead guilty without challenging the evidence against the Petitioner/Appellant?

(Appellant's brief, p.1.)

The state rephrases the issue as:

Has Brown failed to show error in the district court's summary dismissal of his untimely petition for post-conviction relief?

ARGUMENT

Brown Has Failed To Show Error In The District Court's Summary Dismissal Of His Untimely Petition For Post-Conviction Relief

A. Introduction

Brown filed his petition for post-conviction relief on September 12, 2013, more than two years after the judgment in his underlying criminal case became final. (Compare R., p.2 with R., p.27.) Adhering to the procedures set forth in Idaho Code § 19-4906, the district court ultimately dismissed the petition on the ground that it was untimely. (R., pp.25-28; 41-44; 54-56.) On appeal, Brown asks this Court to extend equitable tolling to his claim of ineffective assistance of counsel. (Appellant's brief, pp.1-8.) Brown has failed to show that his claim merits equitable tolling. The district court's order dismissing Brown's untimely post-conviction petition should be affirmed.

B. Standard Of Review

"On review of a dismissal of a post-conviction relief application without an evidentiary hearing, this Court will determine whether a genuine issue of fact exists based on the pleadings, depositions and admissions together with any affidavits on file" Workman v. State, 144 Idaho 518, 523, 164 P.3d 798, 803 (2007) (citing Gilpin-Grubb v. State, 138 Idaho 76, 80, 57 P.3d 787, 791 (2002)).

C. <u>Brown's Petition For Post-Conviction Relief Is Untimely And He Has Failed To Show A Sufficient Basis For Equitably Tolling The Statute Of Limitation</u>

Post-conviction proceedings are governed by the Uniform Post-Conviction Procedure Act. I.C. § 19-4901, *et seq*. To be timely, a post-conviction proceeding must be commenced by filing a petition "any time within one (1) year from the expiration of

the time for appeal or from the determination of an appeal or from the determination of proceedings following an appeal, whichever is later." I.C. § 19-4902(a). Under Idaho Code § 19-4906:

When a court is satisfied, on the basis of the application, the answer or motion, and the record, that the applicant is not entitled to post-conviction relief and no purpose would be served by any further proceedings, it may indicate to the parties its intention to dismiss the application and its reasons for so doing. The applicant shall be given an opportunity to reply within 20 days to the proposed dismissal. In light of the reply, or on default thereof, the court may order the application dismissed or grant leave to file an amended application or, [sic] direct that the proceedings otherwise continue. Disposition on the pleadings and record is not proper if there exists a material issue of fact.

I.C. § 19-4906(b); see also Workman, 144 Idaho at 523, 164 P.3d at 803.

The district court followed the procedures set forth in Idaho Code § 19-4906 in dismissing Brown's untimely post-conviction petition. First, the district court gave notice of its intent to dismiss Brown's post-conviction petition on the ground that it was untimely. (R., pp.25-28.) Then, following additional filings from Brown, the trial court reiterated this basis and further explained why Brown's petition was frivolous in an amended notice. (R., pp.41-44.) Finally, more than 20 days later, the court dismissed the petition. (Compare R., p.41 with p.54.)

Brown's petition for post-conviction relief was untimely. In his underlying criminal case, Brown was convicted, pursuant to a guilty plea, of trafficking in heroin in July 2011. (R., p.27.) Brown did not appeal. (R., p.3.) More than two years later, Brown filed his petition for post-conviction relief in September 2013. (R., p.2.) Brown's petition for post-conviction relief was clearly untimely under Idaho Code § 19-4902, and the district court correctly dismissed the petition.

As he did below (see R., pp.30-40), Brown appears to argue on appeal that he should have been granted equitable tolling, because he alleged in his petition that his counsel was ineffective for failing to appeal the indeterminate portion of his sentence. (See Appellant's brief.) "[T]he bar for equitable tolling for post-conviction actions is high." Chico-Rodriguez v. State, 141 Idaho 579, 582, 114 P.3d 137, 140 (Ct. App. 2005). "Equitable tolling for post-conviction actions 'is borne of the petitioner's due process right to have a meaningful opportunity to present his or her claims." Schultz v. State, 151 Idaho 383, 385-86, 256 P.3d 791, 793-94 (Ct. App. 2011) (quoting Leer v. State, 148 Idaho 112, 115, 218 P.3d 1173, 1176 (Ct. App. 2009)). Idaho appellate courts have allowed for equitable tolling in circumstances where the petitioner is incarcerated out-of-state without access to representation or Idaho legal materials; where his mental illness or medications render him incompetent and prevent him from timely challenging his conviction; or where the petitioner's claim is based on newly discovered evidence. Judd v. State, 148 Idaho 22, 25-26, 218 P.3d 1, 4-5 (Ct. App. 2009). Courts, however, "have not permitted equitable tolling where the post-conviction petitioner's own lack of diligence caused or contributed to the untimeliness of the petition." Amboh v. State, 149 Idaho 650, 653, 239 P.3d 448, 451 (Ct. App. 2010) (citations omitted).

Brown argues that his ineffective assistance of counsel claim should not be time-barred because in other cases where defendants in federal court sought federal relief for procedurally defaulted claims under *habeus corpus*, those claims could still be heard. (Appellant's brief, p.2.) Contrary to Brown's argument, under the Uniform Post-Conviction Procedure Act, equitable tolling is not available for mere claims of ineffective

assistance of counsel. The Idaho Supreme Court's opinion in Rhoades v. State, 148 Idaho 247, 220 P.3d 1066 (2009), controls on this point. Addressing Rhoades' argument that equitable tolling should apply to his claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, the Court held:

We have repeatedly held that ineffective assistance of counsel claims can or should be known after trial. In addressing one of Rhoades' previous appeals, we squarely addressed this issue. "Ineffective assistance of counsel is one of those claims that should be reasonably known immediately upon the completion of the trial and can be raised in a post-conviction petition." The facts of the case, being particularly within the knowledge of the defendant should be sufficient to alert a defendant to the presence of ineffective assistance of counsel.... Accordingly, we conclude that the district court properly dismissed this claim as untimely.

<u>Id.</u> at 253, 220 P.3d at 1072 (citation omitted). Brown's knowledge was sufficient to alert him sooner than two years after his conviction became final that his attorney had failed to file an appeal of his sentence. Brown's lack of diligence in timely asserting a claim of which he either was or should have been aware does not provide a basis for equitable tolling.

This Court should decline to extend equitable tolling to this case. Brown's post-conviction petition was untimely and the district court was correct to summarily dismiss the petition on this ground. The district court's order summarily dismissing Brown's petition should be affirmed.

CONCLUSION

The state respectfully requests that this Court affirm the district court's order dismissing Brown's untimely petition for post-conviction relief.